' | =FA
UNITED NATIONS Hex
GENERAL
GENERAL fs)ACal+8/sa.16
ASSEMBLY 2 Deceaber 1951
. ENGLISH

C—— ‘ ___ORIGINAL : ENGLISH AND FRENCH

Dual Distribution

COMMITTEE ON INTSRNATIONAL CRININAL JUAISDICTLON
. First Session
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE SIXTEENTH MEETING

held at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Monday, 20 August 1951, at 10 a.m.

LONTENTS:
Procedure of an inbernational criminal court:

Chapter III of annex II to the Secretary-Generall's
memorandum (continued) .



&AJAC.LB/SR.16

page 2
.Pres_ent: h
Chaimmen: Mr. MORRIS
Members:
Australia . © Mr. WINES
China ) Mr. WANG
Demmark - |  Mr, SORENSEN
Egypt : _ MOSTAFA Bey
. France Mr., PINTO
" Israel Mz, COHN
Netherlands - " Mr. ROLING
Pakistan Mr., MUNIR
Syria ) Mr, TARAZI
United Kingdom of Great Britain ' .
and Northerm Ireland Mr, JONES
United States of America Mr, MAKTOS
Uruguay Mr. PINEYRO CHAIN
Secretariat:

Mr, Liang Secretary > the Camittee



4/5C.48/SR.16
page 3

1. PROCEDURE OF AN INTERNATIONAL CRIMINAL COURT:

Chapter III to wnnex II to the Secretery-General's memorandum (continued)
(: /aC.48/1) i/aC.48/L.9, ./AC48/L.11)

1, The CHAIRMAN called upon the Net erlands representative who, in the absence
of the Danish representative, had presided over the last meeting of the Drafting
Sub-Committee, to report in the light of the Sub-Committee's discussions as to the

order of the Committee!s work.

2, Mr. ROLING (Netherlands) said that the—Drafting Sub-Committee had drafted
two further articles relating respectively to the law to be applied by the court
and to the establishment of a committing authority, and that it wes in process of
considering texts to give effect to other decisions of the Committee, It now
seemed appropriate that the Committee should resume its discussion on the rights
and duties of accused with regard to the making of statements and the answering of

questions, whether or not on oath,

Self-incrimination (article 364 in document A/AC.48/L.9)

3. The CHAIRMAN believed that the view of the Drafting Sub-Committes was that
in respect of the rights and duties of the accused concerning the making of state-
ments and answering of questions, the same rules should apply in the international
field as wauld apply to any procedure befors national criminal courts under recog-
nized systems of penal law. It also seemed to consider that the only general rule
that should be applied was that an accused should not be compelled to testify
against himself, and that no adverse construction should be placed on his refusal

to make a statement, .

be Mr. PINTO (France) was generally in agreement with the United States
representative on th- underiring principles of articlé 364 of his proposal (:/iC.48/
L.9). /All the members of the Committee were of course prepared to ensure that the

accused would be given every guarantee necessary for his defence,

5. He felt some concern, however, lest the United States proposal forced the
Committee to go into procedural details, It seemed to him that it would be better
to leave them to the court., He (Mr., Pinto) would have preferred a general formula



A/4C.48/5R.16
page 4

embodying the principles summarized by the Chainman. For that purpose, the Commit-
tee would perhaps do well to adopt the principle laid down in the United States
Constitution that no-one could be compelled to be a witness against himself.(l)
Thut formula, in fact, provided for all the contingencies that might arisé, and it
woulé no doudbt find unanimous support in the Committee, The means 6f~app1ying.
that principle could be left to the court iteelf to prescribe in its rules of

pro: ~dure,

6, Mr. ROLING (Netherlands), observing that under continental systems of
law the position of the witness was quite different from that of an accused,

in that the latter enjoyed the»option of speéking or remaining'silent, considered
that that distinction should be carefully maintained on the international level.
Thus, the issue waé whether an accused would have the right to make a statement
at his descretion, or whether he would have a Juty to maks such a statement on

oath or not on oath vith all the consequential implications thereof.

7« Ths Ccmmitteé could; he believed, agreé that an accused was under no obli-
gation to make a statement if he preferred to keep silent but that he had a right
to testify, even on.oath; and also that any decision on his part to remain silent
would not be allowed to prejudice h’s case, It had transpired at the Tokyo Trial
that when several accused had been tried at the same time, some of them had refused
to testify, with the result that their failure had been adversely commented on by
the prosecutiqn.’ Yet their refusal to speak could have b.:n legitimaiely inter-
preﬁed as dictated by an understanaable desire not to implicate their fellow-

accused,
8., He therefore felt that a text on the following lines would meet the situation:
"I'ne accused may, whether or not on oath, make statements to the court

or answer questions, If he prefers to remain silent, no conclusion
shall. be drawn therefrom."

(1) Fifth amendment to the United States Constitution,



4/AC.48/5R.16
page 5

9. Mr, COHN (Israel) agreed with the substance of the Netherlands proposal,
but submitted an alternative text for the consideration of the Committee, which
read:

"The accused shall have the right, but shall not be compelled, to testify
on his own behalf, whether on oath or without oath,

If the accused chooses to testify on oath, hs shall be liable to cross~
examination by the prosecutor,

The refusal of an accused to testify, or to testify on oath, shall not

be deemed relevant for the determination of his guilt." (1)

He had added the second paragraph so that an accused might clearly realize
the consequences for himself of electing to testify on oath.

10. Mr. ROLING {Netherlands) said that, so far as he was concerned, the
objection to the Israeli text was that an accused testifying on oath would be
compelled to answer qﬁestions. He personally considered that rio accused should
be compelled to give answers to questions which might adversely affect his

own interests, or those of his fellow-accused, and that a refusal on his part

to do so should not be adversely construed.

11, Mr, MUNIR (Pakistan) inquired whether, under the Israeli proposal,
an accused testifying on oath in respect of one of a number of charges laid
against him would be liable to cross—examination on the other charges,

12, Mr., COHN (Israel) confirmed that such would be the case, An accused
giving evidence on oath normally laid himself open to cross—examination on the
'whoie case against him, such cross-examin.tion frequenily extending beyond
considerations directly rclated to the charges brought against' him,

13, The CHAIR~.\N, developing the Israeli representative's reply, observed
that such a refinement of the rule could probably be left for determination by
the court itself,

(1) A/AQ,AB/L.ll section 1.



page 6

14, T+ MAKTOS (United States of America) considered that an accused would ¥
be afforded reasonably wide protection if given the option of going into the box
or not and of making an unsworn statement, the weight of which it would bz for

the court to determine. In his view; it would be extending that protection unduly
to enable an accused to make a statement on oath without being subject to cross-
examination. It would, moreover, be appreciated that such a faeility would even
reduce the scope of the protection afforded to accused, for the court might easily
- regard his evidance on cath as ¢f no greater value than an unsworn statedént.
Cross—examination could bring oué the truth whioch an honest accused might well
wish tn be establishsed, and there seesmed no point in seeking to protect an untruth-
ful accused at the expense of the interests of justice. 4s to‘the point made by
the Pakistani representative, it might be advisable for the Committes to decide
fortlnr th whether cross-examination of an accused:- should be limited to questioning
on the counts of the c@arge concerning which he had gone into the witness-box.

15, Mr, MUNIR (Pakistan) said that in his view cross-examination should be

so limited,

16, The CHAIRMAN thought that the Committee should first settle the issue
which divided the Israeli and Netherlands proposals, namely, whether there should

be any cross-examination at all,

17, Mr, PINEYRO CHAIN (Uruguay) remarked that the Israeli propusal like
that of the Netherlands representative, would allow the accused the right to
testify on oath. .according to Uruguayan law, howsver, the accused could not
testify in his ovn behalf, nor could he be compelled to take an oath. It should
be emphasized that there was a fundamental difference between the legal position
of the witness and that of the accused, It was essential tha. the witness should
speak the whole truth and nothing but the truth, and if he feiled to respect his
oath he might be charged with perjury., The case of the accused was entirely
different, He did not, in fact, assist in justice being done, and he could not,
even on oath, act as a witness. It was recognized in the Netherland's text that,

even wiere the ac-used testified on oath, he was not obliged to sﬁéak the whole



i/5C.48/SR .16
page 7

truth, Accordingly, he felt it would be preferable to state more simply that
the accused was not subject to the same obllgatlons as witnesses, and that refusal
tc answer could not be held agsinst him, .t all events, his delegation was opposed

to the principle of an oath capable of turmming the accused into a witness.

18, Mr, ROLING (Netherlands) said that in his country, %oo, an accused was
never put on oath, -Since, however, an accused before the court might be a national
of a country where the Anglo-Saxon system of law applied, the Drafting Sub-
Coumittee had considered it cesirable to afford him the right, within the court's

procecdurs, of making a sworn statement and of being cross—examined,

19. In his view few, if any, accused would be likely to exercise such a right,
especialiy if the cross-examination entailed any risk of implicating fellow-accused,
He again urged that an accuscd should have the right tc¢ refuse to answer questlons,

and that no adverse conclusions should be drawn therefram,

20, The extent of the accused's contribution to the evidence was not an important
consideration, and thie Committee was really only concerned with the right of
accused to make statements which siiould be regarded as a means of providing the
court with general information largely of a background nature, In his view, there-

fore, the Israeli proposal should not be adopted.

21, irs PINTO (France, said his reason for suggesting that the Committee
should confine itself to taking a stand in principle on the question of proceaure
was that he had foreseen the discussion now taking place between the advocates of
the diffevent rules of evidence, The Uruguayan representative, had made his
country'!s position clear, and had upheld a liberal conception of the rights of
the accused according to which the latter had complete liberty to make any state-
nment in his own favour. That was, moreover, a concept which was tending to
disappear, The accused was being called upon more and more to assist in estab-
lishing the facts. Under the .nglo-Saxon system, which the Israeli representative
had defended, the accused might testify, take an oath and thus act as a witness
in his own bchalf. As between those two opposing concepts, he (ir. Pintc) pre-

ferred that of the Netherlands representative, which was a compromise and he hoped



aWfACLB/SR,16
page 8

.

that the Comnittee weuld adept that intermediate position. Moreover, the thesis
supported by the representative of Israel distinguished between the accused
testifying on gath and the accused-testifying without taking an oath. Ths French
delegation was not in fawvour of that distinction. It was the business of the
court to deocide as to the value of statements made by the accused. He supported
the formula which drew no‘diatinction between the accused on oath and the accused
who had not taken an cath. '

22, Mr, COHN (Israel) submitted that the m&in objective was to secure for an
accused the right to remain silent, that was to say, the right to refrain from
convicting himself« The problem was how to guarantes such protection without
obstructing the administration of justice, If an accused elected to remain silent,
he could not be compelled to make a statement; if, however, he dld not so choose,
" two alternatives were open to him: first, to make a statament but not as a
witness subject to cross-examination; and secondly, to make a frank statement on
oath, possibly with a view to adducing evidence which he alone could provide and
to present his case in a manner calculated to bring out the whole truth in his own .
interests and in the interests of justice, It would be noted that Anglo-Saxon
law hed developed from the position of considering the accused as not competent

to give evidence to the position of enabling him to present to the court 'he whole
truth of the case in swomn statement and under cross-examination,

23, To his uind, therefore, if an accused was to be given the right to keep
silent he should alsc be entitled to make a limited statement, or an unlimited
statement on oath, The combination.of those facilities, in his view, constituted

all the protection any accused could possibly claim in any criminal court,

24, The French representative had argued that the distinction between testifying
on oath and testifying without oath should be made by the court and not in law.

He had no quarrel with the view that the court would be the sole judge of the
welght of an accused!s statements, wmether on oath or without oéth, but he sub=-
mitted that the whole intention of introducing the consideration of testimony

on oath was to divect the attention of the accused to the conseguences involved

in mxking statements on oath.



AJHCJ48/5SR .16
page 9

25. The CHAIRMAN said that the clear issue still before the Cammittee was
whether an accused could testify on oath, with or without being subjected to

I
cross-examination.

26. Mr, SORENSEN (Denmark) inquired whether the Netherlands representative,
‘in using the words "or answer questions!, did not envisage the same possibility
as the Israeli representative, Aamely, thﬁﬁ an accused should be given the
option of answering or refuéing to aﬁswer questions put to him either by his
own counsel or by the prosecution., As he saw it, the whole dlfference between’
the two proposals before the Coumittee hinged on the question of the oath,

The Israell delegation admitted the possibility of cross—examination only when
an accused was prepared to enter the witness-box., He personally could visualize
the possibility of an accused being unwilling to make a statement on oath, and
yet belng prepared to be cross—examined, for the idea of swearing an oath was,
in the minds of come people, bound up with specific agsociations, for éxample,
religious considerations. He preferred the Netherlands wording, which would
make it possible for an accused to en*er the witness box but did not make the

taking of an oath a condition of the privilege of answering questions,

»

27, Mr. MAKTOS (United States of .merica) wondered whether the two
proposals could not be reconciled by providing that "an accused shall testify
according to the law of his own country", fﬁ addition, he hardly thought it
right that an accused should be precluded from givin, evidence on oath merely

" because éhe law in the country of which he was a national did not recognize such

2 procedure,

28, nr, ROLING (Netherlands) believed that a rule such as the United States
* representative had suggested would lead to intermuinable discussions before the
court as to exactly what law applied. He would prefer a rule that would not
give rise to such a possibility,

29, ﬁr; COHN (Israel), supoorting the Netherlands representative, raised
the further objection that unfair discrimination might arise if several accused

on trial at the same time were subjected to different procedures on furnishing



AfiC.48/3R.16
page 10

evidence because of differences in procedures in’their respective countries,

30. After some further discussion Mr, MAKTOS (United states of America) revised
his suggestion to read:

#An accuzed may elect to testify under the rules of his nationsl law
or any other recogniced system of law," -

31, Mr. WYNES (Australia) considered that even that proposal did not fully
covef the situvation, 4s he saw it, the Caumittes had a choice between the Iesraeli
and Netherlands proposals.l) There vere three possibilities to consider; first,
that an accused could not be a witness; secondly, than an accused could make a
statement but not be subject to cross-examination; and lastly, that an accused
could make a statenent on oath and be subject to cross-examination. inglo-Saxon
procedure appeared to cover all three cases, for under it an accused could make
an unswormn statement or could go into the witness~box. If he wiched to give evid-
ence on ocath he had to accept the accompanying responsibilities in the form of
submitting to cross-examination, He agreed with the United States representative
~ that an accused should not be prevented “rom electing to avail himself of a
privilege not open toc him under the rules of his national criminal jurlsdicticn,
and wondered what objecticn, if any, the Uruguayan representative had to offering
an acocused such privilege. In sum, he cof\sidered that the Israell proposal was
preferable to that of the Netherlands representative,

32, Mr. PINEYRO CHAIN (Uruguay) shared the view that a compromise formula
applicable to 21l possible cases should be sought., First, it should be laid down
that the accused had the right by a confession, to make a statement about his own
actions without being on oath. Secondly, when the accused wished to testify he.
could do a0, without being put on oath or being subjected to the law of hie
country, ‘ :

33. He vas therefore in favour of the principle t ~ the accused couid mike
statements without having to do so on oath. )

1) See paragraphs 8 and 9 above.



a/ACL8/SR.16
page 11

1
34, The CHAIRM/N put the United States revisethext to the vote.

The United States revised text was rejected by 7 waotes to ) with 3

abstentions.

35, Mr, PINTO (France) asked the representative of Isracl whether, under
the system he recammended, an accused person who was not sworn could, if he so
desired, submit to examination and cross-examination by the defence'or the
prosecution, The accused could certainly not be denied that right,

36, The representative of Australia had mentioned three situations in which
the accused might find himself, but did not appear to have considered that cases

37, Mr, COHN (Israel) sald that, in the light of the comments of the
Australian, Danish and French representatives, he would replace the words
'whether on oath or without ocath" in his propésaI by the words "elther from the
witness stand or from the dock": That amendment would have the effect of leaving
no doubt on the question ¢f liability to cross—examination.

38, Mr. JONES (United Kingdom) asked whether the Israsli representative
would consider modifying the phrase '"whether on oath or without oath” to read
"whethér on oath or otherwise", He made that suggestion because of certain other
possibilities, such as the admission of a statement by an accused prior to the
trial,

39, Mr, COHN (Israel) felt that the word "otherwime" was not sufficiently
precise, Such matters as so;emn affirmation by an accused and the like wers
more questlons of procedure than of principle.

40, Mr, JONES (United Kingdom) said that he had in mind the circumstances
in which a statement would be made  for instance, at the preliminary hearing
or between that hearing and the trial or during the course of the trial, With
regard to drafting, he believed that it would be more emphatic, and therefore
preferable, to delete the word "deemed" from the third paragraph of the Igraeli
proposal.

(1) See paragraph 30 above,



A/KC.LB/SR 16
page 12

s

41, Mr, PINTO (France) observed that the representative of Israel had
not answered his question, namely, whether the prisoner at the bar could elect
to be subjected to examlnation and cross-examination by the defence or the

prosecution,

42, Mr. COHN (Israel) con’irmmed that his propossl would not prevent an
accused from electing to answer questions even though he had not entered the

witness-box for the purpose of making a statement,

k3. The CHAIRMAN put the substance of the Israsli and Netherlands proposals
to the vote,

The principle of the Israell proposal was adopted by 6 votes to 5 with 1
abstention, . ‘

hi, Mr. MUNIR (Pakistan), explaining his vote, said he had supported the
Israell proposal, subject to the proviso that cross-examination should be limited

* to the facts on which the accugsed had maae a deposition, and to the further proviso
that the right to cross-examine an accused would not be confined to the prosecu-

tion, but would be open to other accused persons on trial at the same time,

45. Mr. PINEYRO CHAIN (Uruguay) explained that he had voted for the Israeli
proposal because it permitted the accused to choose one of the followlng alter-
natives: either to act as a witness, with all the resultant legal consequences,
or to retain his status us the accused person,

46, The CHAIRMAN suggested that the Israell representative‘s text be adopted ‘
for worklng purposes, and proposed that it be reforred to the Drafting Sub-
Committee for further comsideration in the light of the varivus camments made,

anu especlally of those made by the Pakistanl representative.

It was 8o agreed.

The meeting was suspended at 11:.35 ond was resuned at 11,50 a.m,




A5G, 48/SR16
page 13 !

47. Mr, COHN (Israe;) thought that, before the Committes left the subject
of self-incrimination, it should consider one further provision for the protection
of the accused, namely, whether statements made out of court were to be recognized
or not. Tﬁe necessary safeguard was provided in section 2 of his amendment,
(4/4C.48/L.11) which read:

"No confession made by the accused out of Court shall be admitted
in evidence against him, unless the Court is satisfied that thse
accused was not induced to make.the confession by infliction of

. physical suffering upon him or threats’thereof, or by any threats or
promises likely to cause him to make any such confession falsely, and
that he made the confession consciously and understanding what he said
and did,"

48, ,He claimed no copyright for that text, since he had taken it from a proposal
by the American Law Institute for the Model Code of Evidence (l9b2).l) It was
not, furthermore, a correct statement of Anglo-Saxon Law as applied nowadays.
Under the Aﬁglo-Saxon system, no confessions of that kind were admitted as
evidence against the accused unless certain very stringent rules had been observed
by the authorities at the time of recording the statement,

49. He felt that the accused should be given some protection, and that provision
should be made for.it in the statute of the court; a reference to the "judges!
rules" as applied in Anglo-Saxon countries would not be adequate in view of the
intricacies involved., That was why he had submitted his text, which gave the
accused the necessary protection against any statements unfairly or unlawfully
extorted from him, being used against him, A decision on the matter could
adnittedly be left to the discrotiom of the court, which would no doubt immediately
reject all evidence obtained by unfair means, but he none the less felt there was

. a pressing need for making specific provision in the statute to warn the police

1, Model Code of Evidence, as adopted and promulgated by the imeriecan Law
Institute at Philadelphia, Pa. May 1., 1942. (1942 American Law Institute,
Philadelphia, Pa.). '



A/AC.48/SR .16
page 14

and other authorities responsible for preparing evidence that any statement they
obtained unlawfully could not be used to incriminate the accused. Such a provision

would act as an effective deterrent.

‘SQ. Referring to the last clause of his text, namely, that the court should ba
satisfied that the accused'had made the confession "consciously and understanding
what he said and did", he pointed out that several countries had held political
criminal trials, in which it was doubtful wh.ther the statements attributed to’
the accused had been made consciously. He therefore considered it imperative
to make it clear that such confessions would be of no avail in an international_
criminal court. The psychological effect on investigating authorities of the

inclusion of such a provision in the statute should not be underrated.

51, He therefore proposed that the Cormittse accept sect.on 2 of his amendment in
audition to the principle alreauy adopted. ’

52, Mr. MUNIR (Pakistan) could not accept the Isracli text. The Committes
was dlscussing and making provision for machinery to be used at actual trials
whereas the Israell text was more concerned with the adunissibility of evidence.
The rule proposed was only one of several hundred, and if the Coumittee were to
embark on a study of the rules of evidence, it would rcquire at least six months
to complete it, There were other important rules of evidence which might well
be studied, such as those concernsd with hecarsay evidence, but the problen was
 too complicated to be tackled by.the Cormittee in the short time at its disposal,

53, The CHAIRMAN agreed with the Pakistani represcntative, The rules of
evidence presented enormous problems, and 1f the Committee once embarked on thelr
study, it would be difficult to uecide exactly where it should stop., He therefore
suggested that the Committee should limit itself to taking note of the Israsli
proposal, duly recognizing the importance of the topic, and also of the arguments

of the Pakistani representat ve, which were based on practical considerations.

54 Mr, COHN (Israel) felt that a vote should be taken. He quite agreed
“with the Pakistani representative that it would be impossiﬁle to consider each and

Fa



4/AC.18/5R,16
page 15

every rule of evidence, but felt that the one to which he had referred was gquite
different from any other, The Committee was attempting to provide minimum
guarantees for the accused; ‘it haa already agreed on a number of such safeguards,
but unless the further, and most vital, safeguard provided by his text were
admitted, all other guar;ntees would be vitiated, Furthermore, since the Commlittee
had already agreed to one proposal concerning self-incrimination while the trial
was in progress, it was only logical that it should adopt another relating to

statements made outside the court,

55, The CHAIRMAN called for a vote on the Pakistanl proposal that the

Comiittee take no action on section 2 of the Israeli amendment.

The Pakistani proposal was adopted by 9 votes to 1 with 2 abstentions,

56, The CHiIRMAN interpreted the vote as applying equally to other points

concerned with rules of evidence,

srticle 36 of annex II to the Secretary-General's memorandum (A/AC.48/1)

57. Mr, SORENSEN (Demmark), happorteur, said that the next item for dis-
cussion waé article 36 in annex II of the Se aetary-General's memorandum, Certain
of tue problems connected with that article had already been discussed by the
Committee in its study of the question of indictment, It had, for example, agreed
in principle that the indictment should contain a list of the names of witnesses
and a general description of the documentary evidence to be produced and, further,
thet it could be modified in certain ways in respect of such names and evidence,
No reference, had, however, been made to experts or to the right of the court to
hear witnesses and experts on its own imitiative. He consequently suggested that
the Committee should concentrate on those aspects, taking into account the amend-
ment suggested by the United States representétive in article 36 of his proposal
(L/4C.48/1.9). '

58, Mr. MiKTOS (United States of America) said that the Committee had already

made provision for a screening proces 1) and had decided that there should be an

1) Sumary record of the 12th meeting (../.C.48/SR.12), paragraph 58,



A/AC.LB/SR 16
page 16

investigating authority ueaﬁsnsible for determining whether a prima facifp case
had been made out.l) The next stage to -be considered was that.of the trial it-
gelf. He envisazed the court as an impartial arbiter hearing and weighing the
argunents submitted by the two parties, the prosecution and defence, and accord-
ingly felt that it would be in the best.interests of justice to leave the latter
respaneible for calling all witnesses, the court refraining from intervening at
any atége. .. =7 been with some misgivings that he had observed the_reference
in article 36 in annex II to the court being fres to hear witnesses and expesfs
“even of its own motion". The onus of demonstrating the guilt of the .accused
'was8 on the presecution, and on the prosecution alone; if it failed to do 8o,

the court must diamise_the case,

59+ The court must not be confused with the prosecuting authority;‘ it could
recall such wipnésses as had aléeady been prodﬁced, but that was as far as it
could intervene in the action, He personally found the phrase "the court shall
be free to decide whesher /witnesses and experts/ shall be summoned and heard®
insidious, It was impossible for the court to say whether or not the accused
needed or could have a given witness, It could, on the other hand, as article
41G of the United States amendments (../nC.48/L.9) provided, rule out irrelevan.
igsues, evidence and statements, in which case it would be the responsibility
of counsel for the defence to demonstrate the relevancy of any evidence or

statement he prodaced.

60. He admitted that the mention in article 36 annex II of "experts" sounded
plausible, but wondered exactly what it was intended to convey. In a case
involving Admiralty Law, for example, the court might conceivably call in experts,
but he submitted that, if it was necessrry to the prosecution's case to prove
that some point of Admiralty Law was involved, it would be the responsibility of
the prosecutlion, and not the court, to do so. ‘

61, Mr. LIANG, Secretary to the Committee, appreciated the United States
representative!s remarks but, although he had no intention of defending the draft

I

(1) Summary record of the 13th meeting (i/AC.48/SR.13), paragraph 25,




3/AC.48/SR.16
page 17

" in annex II, felt that the Committse should bear in mind the fact that, in the

issue it was discussing, as in many others, it was serving as a kind or school

for the study of comparative law., The Secretariat had based itself on continental
legal proceduée, whereas the United States representative naturally viewed the
problem from the standpoint of the inglo-Saxon system. It was unnecessary to go
into the merits and demerits of the two, but any study of continental procedure,
which was also followed in China, would show that the powers of a court to summon
vitnesses and experts were very clearly stated, It was, indeed, a daily occurrence
for a Chinese court to swmion witnesses on its own initiative. The point at issue
was: which system would prove preferable for the intemational criminal court?

He personally had felt no misgivings on reading the United States propossl, since,

in his opinion, it merely constituted a different line of apprdach,

92, Mr, ROLING (Netherlands) felt that two main problams were involved.
The Committee had first to decide whether the court was to remain passive and
wait for witnesses to be produced, or whether it should be given some initiative:
in the matter, He pointed out that both at Nuremberg and at Tokio the court

had had the right to suzmon witnessesl); at Tokio, however, it had not exercised
that right (poss;bly because the majority of the judges had been versed in the
inglo-3axon system), a cireuwnstance which he regretted, since otherwise better

" results might well have been secured, Under the continental system, on the other

hand, a judge could take the initiative of sumoning witnesses and of requiring
cervain documents.to be produced, thus playing a far more active part in the pro-
ceedings of the court, However, he did not feel that any specific mention of

the point should be made in the statute of the court, as it'was, in his opinien,

rather a question for the rules of procecure,

63. 'The second issue which called for a decision was whether the Committee should
itself define the powers of the court to rule out evidence on the grounds of

irrelevancy.

1) Crarter of the International Military Tribudal, article 17;
Caoarter of the International Military Tribunal for the Far East,
article 11.



A/AC48/SR. 16
page 18

6l Mr. PINEYRO CHAIN (Uruguay) said that article 36 in annexIy was intended
to lay down the princi.ple_a governing the appesrance of witnesses. But, as the
Secretary had right.ly observed, those principles were not sacrosanct, and others
might well be formulated. ~In any case, it must be left to the court to decide
whether a witness should be heard or not and to assese the value of the evidence
produced, The observance of those two principles was adequately ensured by the
provisions of article 36, as drafted by the Secretariat, If the question of sube
mission of evidence were lntroduced at that stage, the Committee would become
involved in the complications of criminal prpc_adure.

65, Evidence against the accused should be produced by the prosecution, and
evidence in his favour shonld be produced by the defence, But the submission of
evidence could not be left entirely to the parties. The court should be able
to supplement the evidence submitted by any other evidence which it considered
material; moreover, provision should be made for such evidence to be verified
by both parties to ensure that it was not prejudicial to them,

66, He therefore gonsidered that the provisions of article 36 in annex II of
the Secretary-General'!s memorandum, should be retained, Thelr scope might how-
ever, be extended by providing, for instance, that the court should be empowered
of ite own motion to produce any evidence which it considered mp.terial.

67, Mr, TARAZI (Syrla) entirely agreed with the views expressed by the
representative of Uruguay, He only wished to point out that the continental
system gave the court certain powers, but made a distinction between the powers
conferred on it by the code of procedure and -the diseretionary powers of the
Judge,. If new evidence was produded during = hearing, the latter powers enabled
the court to call new witn;ssea or experts,

68, With regard to the powers of the court, the United States proposal (A/AC.48/L.9)
contained essential elements which must be introduced into the statute of the

court, and to which another essential power might be added, namely, power to

release the accused provisivnallye In the United States text the question of

powers of the court was dealt with befors that of the conduct of thc trial, Howe
ever, .t.he question under examination by the Committee concernud the latter point;



LfAC48/SR.16
page 19 o

it would therefore be logical to examine article 41 . of the United States text
at the present stage.

69. The CHAIRMAN felt that, since the Committee had already embarked on its
examination of article 36, it would be best to continue, unless the Syrian repre-
sentative wished to press his point, .

!

70. As he interpreted the alternative text for article 36 submitted by the United
States delegation, it contained nothing incompatible with the court being granted
full powers to call for evidence and swmmon witnesses., The Secrstariat's £exb, on
the other hand, was more explicit, prescribing certain limitations which did not
appear in the former.

71, Mr, LiKTOS (United States of .merica) recalled that the Secretary had
suggested that the United States proposal was based on .nglo-Saxon legal cohcepta.
He submitted, however, that no one present would disagree with its principles,
since it’was based on common sense and, unlike the Secretariat's text, took into

account both the .inglo-Saxon and the continental systems.

72, He wished to make it quite clear that’it was the first sentence of the
Secretariat's text which he considered insidious, since it would make it impossible
for couhsél to know exactly when he should ask the court for a cdecision as to

his witnesses or expafts, or even to know whether sume system of pre-trial had
. been instituted to approve the summoning of witnesses. If the Secretariat!s text
merely implied that the court cauld stop a trial in order to investigate the

relevancy of evidence, it might, in his opinion, have been worded more precisely.

73. He suggestel that the Comuittee should first voté‘on his altermative text,

and then take up the firast two sentences of the Secretariat's text.

T Mr. ROLING (Netherlands) said that the guestion of further guarantees
of a fair trial had been raised at the last meeting of the Drafting Sub-Committes.
He himself had one more which he would like to add to the seven guarantees pres-
cribed by the Pak;stani'representative. '



A,\/ I;C . Z;8/.SR . 16
page 20 ’

75. The Coumittee had certainly accorded the defendant the right to produce evi-
dence, but both he and hi., counsel might well fin. themselves in an embarassing
situation and virtually powerless. .hey might even finc themselves in the position
of the defendants befors the Nuremberg and Tokio Military Tribuhcls. For example,
while enjoying the theoretical right to produce evidencs, the accused might not
have any-to produce, because it was in the hanus of the prosecution. Of course it
should be recognized that the accused could not be given the right to demand that

- 21l the documents he wanted should be producec, .rchives of ministries of foreign
affairs were often, and for very sound political reasons, top secret, The accused
at Nuremberg ha. asked for papers on Soviet German relations in 1939 and 1940 and,
while those papers had later bsen produced after there had been a change in the
political situation, that had happened two years after the defendants had been
hanged. hers were many similar cases of foreign ministry archives being completely
inaccessible. It was therefore inpossible to draft an article guaranteeing that
the court would help the accusec and prouuce such evidence as he might requiye,

it might none the less be possible to devise one whereby the court would at least

7

lend him its assistance.
76. He consequently suggeste. the following text:

"If so requested by the accused, the Court shall assist the accused in

obtaining eviuence pertinent to the issues involved.®

77. The CH.IRMAN thanked the Netherlanus representative; he added that the
problems mentioned by the latter were new to most members of the Conmittee and.

were lnuced, met with only infrequently in national courts,

Mr, LIaNG, Seeretury to the Cuundituee, wished to make it clear to the
United States representative that his previous remarks had been confined to the
varying approaches adopteu in the differen£ drafts, He consequently felt that it
was impossible to lzbel as “insidious" what was merely normal legal practice iﬂ .

inany countries,

~

The m.ceting rose at 1 p.i.






